

Workflow Configuration for HR & Payroll in Dynamics GP

Table of Contents

Purpose
Prerequisites
System level3
HR & Payroll level3
System Level one time setup4
Workflow configuration
Company level setups4
E-mail message setup4
Workflow Calendar Setup9
Assign Managers to Workflow10
Creating the workflow11
Adding the Workflow Steps13
Configuring conditional steps with examples15
Maintaining workflows16

Purpose

The purpose of this document is to provide a standard guideline to setup the Workflow 2.0 in Microsoft Dynamics GP for the HR & Payroll module. Upon configuration, it would help the users to submit an HR & Payroll related document, master record or batch to the appropriate approver through the system. Email message setup is covered in detail in this document.

Scope of this document is limited to the following workflow types -

- **Employee Profile Approval** allows employees to change their employee information, add emergency contacts, dependents and view their position history.
- **Employee Skills Approval** allows employees to see/edit their education, test, skills and training information.
- **Payroll Direct Deposit Approval** allow employees to start or stop direct deposit, remove or add accounts and edit the direct deposit information.
- Payroll Timecard Approval allows the employees to submit timecards for approval.
- **Payroll W4 Approval** allows employees to change their federal tax information on this W4 form and submit it for approval.

Prerequisites

Following are the prerequisites for the workflow in Dynamics GP for the HR & Payroll module -

System level

- 1. Web Services installed for Microsoft Dynamics GP
- 2. SQL Server Agent (should be running)
- 3. One time setup is required at the system level for the email notification/approval Path Dynamics GP >> Tools >> Setup >> System >> Workflow Setup

HR & Payroll level

- 1. Employees are assigned with a GP User ID (Card >> Employee > Additional Information).
- 2. Timecard Assignments are created and assigned to employees (Dynamics GP >> Tools >> Setup >> Payroll >> Timecard Assignment Setup).
- 3. Pay Schedules are created and assigned to different employees (Dynamics GP >> Tools >> Setup >> Payroll >> Pay Schedule Setup).
- Timecard Restrictions are created and assigned to employees (Dynamics GP >> Tools >> Setup >> Payroll >> Timecard Restrictions).
- 5. Batch Prefixes are created and assigned to employees (Dynamics GP >> Tools >> Setup >> Payroll >> Timecard Batches).

System Level one time setup

Path - Dynamics GP>> Tools>>Setup>>System>> Workflow Setup Or Administration>> Setup>> System >> Workflow Setup

This is a one-time setup only. E-mail address is the e-mail address from which the e-mail will be sent for the notification. It is configured with a user ID which must be changed to a generic e-mail ID like <u>purchasing@company.com</u>. This window can be used for e-mail testing as well. The server name, authentication type can be discussed with your internal IT team. Whether a secure connection (SSL) is required or not can also be determined by your IT. Note - Dynamics GP Web Services Server is without the instance name.

Limitation - E-mail functionality may work or may not work despite setting it up correctly here. This could be because of the various missing components of the Web Services , ISS, .Net Framework etc.. This is beyond the scope of this document.

Workflow configuration

Company level setups

We need to setup the following for the workflow to work properly in each company -

- E-mail Message setup
- Workflow Calendar setup
- Assign Managers to workflow
- Creating New Workflow, Enter Name, Configure Options, Set overdue options
- Add Steps, Check active box to make workflow active, Save Workflow

We would examine each of these steps in the following paragraphs -

E-mail message setup

The Message Setup window defines what appears as the Subject and in the Body of a message when an email notification is sent from Dynamics GP. It can be setup from Administration >> Setup >> Company >> E-mail Message Setup It has the following components :

It has the following components :

• Message ID and Description

We can enter an ID to identify the message. It is recommended to indicate the associated Doc. Type in the ID so that it could be easily identified. The max limit is 25-characters for the ID field. We may type the detail of the message ID in the description field.

• Message Type

We have 3 options available here. We would seelct one of the following message types -

- Standard if we are creating messages for documents that we will be sent to customers or vendors.
- Workflow Assignment if this is to be sent to the approver for the assignment of a workflow task (discussed later in the document in detail).
- Workflow Action Completed This is used to notify the originator for different actions taken during the approval process (discussed later in the document in detail).

• Series

We can select the series in which we would like this message to appear. The series available depends upon the message type selected above. By selecting 'All', the message is available for all of the available series. We cannot select a document type or add fields to customize the message if 'Standard' is the message type and 'All' is assigned as the series.

• Doc. Type

Select the type of Document that we would be using with this Message ID. This field is required if we select any of the series instead if 'All'.

• Subject

We have the ability to type the subject line here. It would become the subject line in the email notification to be sent for this message ID. We can insert fields here so that document specific information, such as document number and employee ID etc. from the document are displayed. Many fields are available for insertion.

• Body

This is where we can type how the body of our message would look like. We can insert fields here so that document specific information, such as the document number, document date, and employee ID etc. are included in the message (discussed later in the document in detail).

• Field

Select the field that we would like to place in the message body or subject line. The fields available in the list depend on the document type we have selected on the top. Fields are not available if we select 'Standard' as the message type and 'All' as the series.

• Additional Fields checkbox

Marking this box displays additional fields in the Field list that we can embed for the selected document type.

• Have Replies Sent to

We have the option to leave this field blank, however, in this case, the reply will go back to the message sender. We would enter or select an email ID that a responder of the email can use to send a reply email. For example, let's assume we have entered <u>admin@company.com</u> as the Reply To address. If we send a document in an email, the receiver receives the email from the user who had initiated the email. However, when the receiver replies to the email, admin@company.com is used in the 'To' field.

Configuring Message ID

Following are the action types for which a notification to the originator can be sent from Dynamics GP for each workflow configured (click on the blue expansion button to see the details).

Workflow Maintenance - TWO (sa)	- U X	
Save Clear Delete Copy Vorkflow Actions New New File	Iools Help Add Tools Help Help	Workflow Email Notification Maintenance - TWO (sa)
	EngloyeePholie Approval	Actions File Tools Help Notify orginator an: Message S ind cabon copy to: Submit WF ACTION COMPLETED* P Resubmit WF ACTION COMPLETED* P Approve WF ACTION COMPLETED* P
Employee Skills Approval Porfile Approval Profile Approval Profile Approval Profile Approval Profile Approval Profile Approval	where ESS Profile.Employee L. Alex Baulin 2 where ESS Profile.Employee L. David Barres	I task Complete V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D Reject V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D Dielegate V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D P Recal V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D E scalate V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D V Excalate V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D V Excalate V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D V Excalate V/F ACTION COMPLETED* D
Dptions: Send notifications Allow approver to	i for completed actions 🔶	PhatApprove

Marking and un-marking the checkbox beside the action type does the activation for that action. We might not activate the notification for each and every type of action as it could be annoying for the originator as well as the approver to get notified of each action initiated. However, setting up notifications related to the submission, delegation and the approval would be highly recommended. Every action has a Message ID linked with it as depicted above which is configured at Administration >> Setup>> Company >> E-mail Message setup (discussed above in detail).

We have the ability to create a new message ID and assign it to a particular action type. We can also create a Message ID by copying it from an existing Message ID and customize it to suit our requirement/s. To copy, we would enter the ID and click on the copy button as depicted below

Message Setup - TWO (sa)	- 🗆 X	🚮 Copy Email Message - TWO (🗕 🗆 🗙
Save Clear Delete Copy Actions File Tools Help Add File Tools Help		K Cancel File Tools Help Actions File Tools Help
Message ID NEW WF ASSIGNMENT Description Message Type Standard Series All Doc. Type	P	Enter or select the message ID you want to copy. Copying replaces any existing information for the message you are copying to.
Subject Body Document Lines	Valdate	Messages - TWO (ca)
	^	Select Cancel File Tooly Help Add
		Message Type Workflow Assignment Series Restriction: Payroll Document Type: V
	~	Message ID Message Type Series Document Type Description WF DD APPR0VAL* Workflow Assignment Payroll Payroll Direct Deposit A Assignment
Select and Insert Fields	✓ Insert	WF EMP PROFILE APPROVAL Workflow Assignment Payroll Employee Profile Approv Assignment WF EMP SKILLS APPROVAL* Workflow Assignment Payroll Employee Skills Approv. Assignment WF TIMECARD APPROVAL* Workflow Assignment Payroll Payroll Timecard Approv. Assignment WF WH APPROVAL* Workflow Assignment Payroll Payroll Timecard Approv. Assignment WF WA APPROVAL* Workflow Assignment Payroll Payroll V4 Approval Assignment
Have Replies Sent to	Select Names	

While coping, the Message type is populated with 'Standard' by default which can be changed for the payroll. Other details in the message setup window are copied from the selection.

As highlighted above, we have the ability to type text in the body or insert some of the Dynamics GP fields within the body of the message. In order to do that, we would need to move our curser to the place where we would like to insert the field. We would then select the field from the dropdown field list and click on insert button. There are 2 types of fields available here for insertion – document related field and the workflow related field. We may select the appropriate field and insert it into the body of the text. Finally, we could have a meaningful message like the following which would be a combination of texts and Dynamics GP fields. We can save the message type when done.

Message Setup - TWO (sa)										\times
Save Clear D	elete Copy	File	Tools	Help	Add Note					
Massage ID	WETIMESH	FET APPR					0			
Description	Assignment	otification	for Project	Time ar	d Exper	se Times	heet And	00042		
Message Tupe	Workflow As:	sianment	ion nopoo	~	na Engon	100 111100	100(1404	1011		
Series	Project			~						
Doc. Туре	Timesheet Ap	proval		~						
Subject	You have a t	ask assign	ment for T	imeshee	t {%Time	sheet Nu	mber%}			
Body		Docu	ment Line	88					Va	lidate
workflow for Times Task. Deadline: (3 Edit or view the d Document Type: Timesheet: (37 tim Employee: (32 tim Document Date: Comments: (32 All Workflow Co	:heet (%Timesh &Action Deadlir ocument: (%Do Timesheet vesheet Numbe vloyee ID%) %Document D mments%}	veet Numbe ne%} scument Dri r%} ate%∦	rr≋). ill Down≋	2						~
Select and Insert F	ields							-	- Inc	
 Document Fie Workflow Fiel 	sidis Fix Idis ⊽	eld] Additiona	al fields	cument [Jate				ins	en
Have Replies Sen	t to								Select	Names

Later, we would assign the message ID to a particular action type. It is to be noted that the series and document type are important factors while creating a message type. If the series and the document type are not correct, the Message ID may not be available for assignment for the workflow type in question. The same logic can be applied to customize the subject line of the message ID. It is highly recommended to use the default message IDs and customize it as per the requirement. Additionally, we can even copy and paste the content of an existing Message ID into a new Message ID and edit the fields to suit our requirements.

If there is a document with detailed line items (like Timesheets, POs, Requisitions etc.), the line details can be inserted from the Document Lines as depicted below



It is to be noted that {%Document Line Fields%} must be inserted into the body of the text message in order to get the line details for each submission. {%Workflow Action List%} defines the hyperlink for the workflow actions in the email. It should always be included else the following will NOT appear in the email notification sent from Dynamics GP –



We could use different message IDs for different action types i.e. we could have a different message ID for submission, re-submission, delegation and approval notification. It is to be noted that we can assign only one Message ID to a unique action type (one to one relationship) at a time. Additionally, a notification will only be sent for a particular action type when we have marked the check box 'Notify Originator on:' for that action.

- 🏷 🗡 🖬		B 🗐	11 🕜 🗂	
ve Clear Delete Copy	/ New	New File	Tools Help Add	
ep Step Actions	New	Step File	Tools Help	
Payroll	~			Order:
Employee Profile	e Approval	Step Name	TimeCard Approval	
Employee Skills	Approval	Description Step Turce		This step is a first step This step follows the selected step
Payroll Direct De	eposit Approv	Step Type	Abbiova	O This step follows the selected step
Payroll Timecard	d Approval			
TimeCard 7 TimeCard 7 TimeCard 7	Approval roval	O Action is	always required for this step required only when the following con	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval roval	O Action is I	aways required on this step required only when the following conv ndtion is not met: End the workflow	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval oval	Action is	aways required on this step required only when the following con- ndtion is not met: End the workflow	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval oval	Action is	aways required on this step required only when the following con- ndtion is not met: End the workflow	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval oval	Action is If the cor Assign to:	aways required for this step required only when the following con- ndition is not met: End the workflow Satyendra Singh	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval oval	Action is Action is If the cor Assign to: Time limit:	aways required for this step required only when the following con- indition is not met: End the workflow Satyendra Singh 8 Hours V	dition is met:
Payroll W4 Appr	Approval oval	Action is Action is If the cor Assign to: Time limit: Send Me	aways required on this step required only when the following con- adtion is not met: End the workflow Satyendra Singh 8 Hours 2 Aceluis forkflow Calendar 55002: WF TIMECARD APPROVAL	dition is met:

Assignment message to the approver is sent from this Message ID -

If there is a need to customize the assignment Message ID, we could either click on the 'Send Message' hyperlink (and bring the changes on the new window opened) or we may go to Administration >> Setup>> Company >> Email message settings to find and modify the content of the Message ID. If needed, a new customized Message ID could be created and assigned here for the notification of the task assignment to the approver.

Workflow Calendar Setup

A Workflow Calendar is a setup to calculate the overdue hours/days in Dynamics GP and used for rejecting/escalating the overdue task/s. The setup is located at Administration >> Setup>> Company>> Workflow Calendar and looks like the following –

An			Wo	rkflow	Calendar -	PROE) (c	ogs)		×
Save Clear Actions	File File	Tools Tools	Help Add Note Help							
	8				Non-wo	k Days				
		Start Time	End Time		Year	2017		~		
🗌 Sunday		8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	0 PM	Date		ſ	Description		a
🗹 Monday		8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	0 PM	12/25	/2017		Description		4
🗹 Tuesday	y	8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	00 PM	0/0/	1000				
Vednes	sday	8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	00 PM	0.07					
Thursda	ay -	8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	00 PM			-			
Friday	-	8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	0 PM						
Saturda	U	8:00:00 A	AM 5:00:0	10 PM			-		=	
	-									

Additional holidays can be setup (though it is optional). The whole setup is optional.

Assign Managers to Workflow

For each workflow to be setup within Dynamics GP, we must setup a Workflow Manager. It is a required configuration. We could have one or multiple workflow managers. This person must be in the active directory.



Creating the workflow

The process of creating/configuring different types of workflow is same. We begin the configuration by selecting the module for which we would be configuring the workflow.

We are presenting here an example of configuring the workflow for 'Employee Profile Approval'. As depicted above, the first step is to define the workflow manager. By clicking on the lookup button and selecting the windows user ID, we have identified 'David from the active directory as the Workflow Manager



Once the managers are assigned, we would click on New Workflow on the top as depicted above to get the following window where we'll configure different options –

Morkflow Maintena	ance - TWO (sa)		- 🗆	\times
Save Workflow Actions	Copy New Workfi	New File New File	Tools Help Add Note Help		
●∃ □∃ Pauroll					
Employee Profile	Approval ile Approval ral	Workflow Name Description Workflow Type	Employee Profile Approval Employee Profile Approval Employee Profile Approval	Active	3
Payroll W4 Appro	pproval posit Approv Approval val	Step Skill Approval	Condition Always run	Assignment Workflow ma	ana
		Deptions: Send notification Allow approver Allow approver Allow originator Always require a Use alternate fir When a task is over Take no action Escalate to next Escalate to: Automatically rej	ns for completed actions to delegate tasks to be an approver at least one approver al approver due: topprover ect the overdue task	 0	
<	>				
Workflow Email No OK Cancel File T Actions File T	tification Mai ools Help Ac No Help Help	ntenance - TWO	(sa)	 ×	
Natificación	Message		Canad and same same bar		
Notify originator on: Submit Submit Approve Task Complete Reject Delegate Recall Escalate Escalate Ecclate	MEISAGE WF ACTION COM WF ACTION COM	IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED" IPLETED"	Send carbon copy to:		
Final Approve	WF ACTION COM	IPLETED*	Q	P	

Under Options (No. 1), we have the ability to define the types of notification to be sent (click the blue expansion button for the action types as depicted above). We can select different action types to notify the originator when one or more of the actions are completed. For each action, an email message can be selected. There is also the option to send a carbon copy of the message to additional parties.

When 'Allow approver to delegate tasks' checkbox is marked, the user who has a task assigned can delegate the task to another user for approval.

Any user who creates a document can submit it for approval. We can specify whether the originator of the workflow could be the approver by marking the checkbox 'Allow originator to be an approver'.

We would mark the checkbox 'Always require at least one approver' if the workflow requires at least one approval regardless of whether a condition for any step has been met or not.

If we need an alternate final approver, we may configure it here by selecting the respective user from the active directory. The alternate final approver is the last person in the approval process who is required to approve a document.

Under the 'When a task is overdue' option (No. 2), we have the ability to configure actions which would be initiated in case the approver failed to approve the document/record within the set time limit. It is to be noted that a holiday configured in the workflow calendar may delay the rejection process. We have the option to -

- Take no action
- Escalate to next approver
- Escalate to (we would need a person user ID if this selected) OR
- > Automatically reject the overdue task.

We can select one of these 4 options for the overdue tasks.

Marking the active checkbox (No. 3) enables the workflow and un-marking it disables it. Notification type and the content of the message is configured after clicking the expansion button as highlighted above with an arrow. Respective Message IDs could be assigned here for the notification.

Adding the Workflow Steps

When we have the workflow name in place, clicking on the 'New Step' button on the action pane will allow us to define the routing rules for the workflow. The configuration of each step will determine the routing for users and how their submissions will be processed.

Workflow Maintenan	ce - TWO (sa)								_		\times
Save Clear Delete Copy Step Actions	New New Workflow Step New	File File	Tools Tools	Help Help	Add Note						
Payrol Payrol Payrol Poyce Profile A Payrol Employee Profile Payrol Direct Dep Payroll Timecard A Payroll W4 Approv	Approval le Approval osit Approv Approval ral	p Name cription b Type Action is a Action is a Action is re- lignment ignment ign to: Send Mes	Profile / Profile / Approve equired or dition is n Satyendra 8 2 Apply 1 Sazz: W	Approval Approval al al al ot met: a Singh Hours Workflow	End the follow	workflow path	ermet	1 This step This step This step Completin Only Majo All m	is a first st follows th on policy: one respo rity must a ust approv	ep e selected nse neede pprove re	6 step: ♥

At least 1 step is required for the workflow to be activated but we could have multiple steps configured here depending on our requirements. In order to create a new workflow Step, we'll highlight the workflow in the left-hand tree in the Workflow Maintenance window and then click on the New Step button in the New section of the ribbon. Steps could be a required step or it could be a conditional step as highlighted in box no. 1. If we need to configure routing to different managers (or groups) for different employees, we would configure the conditional step (described later on how to do that). What action should be initiated if the condition is not met, should be defined in box no. 2. Here, we have the option to continue with the other step or reject it.

We would assign the manager for this step in box no. 3 and define the duration he has for the approval. We can mark or unmark the Apply Workflow Calendar option if we want to follow the rules defined in the calendar for the vacation.

In box no. 5, we have defined the message ID which would be sent to the approver for the task assignment for this step. Marking that check box will enable the email notification for this step. We have the ability to define the completion policy in box no. 4 which is self-explanatory.

If we have multiple steps in our workflow, we can define precedence of each step in box no.6. Also, the step type (as highlighted in yellow above) would change if we have multiple steps in one workflow with precedence. The initial steps would be defined as 'Tasks' while the final one will be 'Approval'.

Configuring conditional steps with examples

Let's assume we have 2 employees with their IDs are RAM001 and DAVID001. The supervisor responsible for the approval is Alex. In this case, we would configure these 2 employees like the following –

🚮 Workflow Maintenanc	ce - TWO (sa)					-	×
Save Step Actions	New New Workflow Step New	File T	Tools	Help Add Help Note Help			
Payroll Payroll Payroll Profile Appro Profile Appro Profile Appro Profile Appro Payroll Direct Depo Payroll Timecard Approvation Payroll W4 Approvation Payro	> pproval e Approval val val 2 proval ssit Approval pproval al			itep Name I bescription I itep Type A Condition:	Profile Approval Profile Approval sporoval sporoval sys required for this step uired only when the following condition is r SS Profile.Employee ID is 'DAV rofile.Employee ID is 'RAM00' ion is not met: End the workflow path	Drder. This step is a first step This step follows the selected step: net: //D001' /'	

We have other employees in the same company whose supervisor is David and the employees reporting to David are ABC001 and BCD001. In this case, we would configure another step and name it as Profile Approval 2 (any name could be given).

Step Name	Profile Approval 2	Order:
Description	Profile Approval 2	This step is a first step
Step Type	Approval ~	O This step follows the selected step:
Condition:	always required for this step	
 Action is r 	equired only when the following condition	is met:
where or ESS	ESS Profile.Employee ID is 'A Profile.Employee ID is 'BCD00	BC001' 01'
If the con	dition is not met: End the workflow path	
Assignment		Completion policy:
Assign to:	David Carlos	Only one response needed
Time limit:	8 Hours ~	 Majority must approve
E	Apply Workflow Calendar	 All must approve
Send Mer	WF EMP PROFILE APPROVAL*	P

It is to be noted here that the 2nd step is configured as 'This Step is a first Step' and the step type is Approval. This way each step becomes an independent step. Finally, the workflow would look like the following

Save Clear Delete Copy Workflow Actions Copy New	File File	Tools Tools	Help Ad Help Ad Help	ld te	
Payroll Payroll Payroll Employee Profile Approval EmployeeProfile Approval Profile Approval	-	Workflow Descriptio	w Name n Type	EmployeeProfile Approval Employee Profile Approval Employee Profile Approval V	Active
Profile Approval 2 Profile Approval 2 Payroll Direct Deposit Approval Payroll Timecard Approval Payroll W4 Approval		Step Profile Profile	Approva Approva	Condition where ESS Profile.Employee I 1 2 where ESS Profile.Employee I	Assignment Alex Baulin David Barnes

We have the option to select different fields from the 'Workflow Condition Editor' window and define the rules for the routing based on these fields. It could be joined by an 'And' or 'Or' statement and could be compared to a different field or a static text. Additionally, we can use the pencil or the delete icon to edit or delete (respectively) the condition.

Workflow Condition Editor			
💭 OK 🎇 Cancel			
and V Select a field	 ✓ contains 	✓ Select a field	~
Compare to: O Constant	Display extended field list	Add	Cļear
Conditions			(JX)
where ESS Profile.Employee ID is 'ABC001'			\smile
or ESS Profile.Employee ID is 'BCD001'			

When the managers are setup, workflow and the steps are configured; we would save it and enable it by marking the active check box. The workflow should be working for the users if configured properly.

The process of configuring Workflow for other workflows like Employee Skills Approval, Payroll Direct Deposit Approval, Payroll Timecard Approval, and Payroll W4 Approval is the same and could be repeated. However, the routing conditions may change depending on the requirements.

Maintaining workflows

Once a workflow is activated and there had been some actions initiated within Dynamics GP for the workflow, it can not be deleted or edited. If there is a requirement to modify the workflow steps, we would recommend to copy the workflow and bring the changes into the copied version. A workflow can be copied by clicking on the workflow name and then clicking on the copy icon on the top (discussed previously in this document).

M Workflow Maintenance - TWO (sa)				- 🗆 ×
Save Workflow Actions	ew New Glow Step New File	Tools Tools Tools Tools Help Note Help		
Payroll Payroll	Workflow Name Description Workflow Type	TimeCard Workflow TimeCard Workflow Payroll Timecard Approval Condition		Active
TimeCard Approval Always run Satyendra Sing				
	Options: Send notifications for completed actions Allow approver to delegate tasks Allow originator to be an approver Always require at least one approver Use alternate final approver			
	When a task is ove Take no action Escalate to ne Escalate to: Automatically n	erdue: h tapprover eject the overdue task		E
< >				

We may rename this workflow and bring the changes required. When satisfied, we may activate this copied version of the workflow. It is to be noted that at a time only one type of workflow under a particular module could be activated.